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The Michel Prudhomme Home is a late 18th/early 19th century plantation
home, typical of the character of French Colonial architecture in
Louisiana.

The two-story building has a gallery across the front, while the
rear gallery, which had rooms on either end, has now been enclosed. (The
original lower column and upper colonettes which support this gallery are
still in place, and the enclosure is such that it could be removed without
damage to the original structure.) The lower story is of soft pink brick,
while the upper story is of briquette entre poteaux. The exterior walls of
the upper story are covered by clapboarding on the sides and rear, while
the front is covered by stucco scored to resemble stone. (Portions of this
have been removed at either end, exposing the briquette entre poteaux.) The
lower story has circular brick columns supporting the upper gallery, while
the upper gallery has cypress colonettes and balustrade. The house has a
high-pitched hipped roof with one dormer on each of the four sides.

The plan of the house is of French origin, with three rooms
across the front, two across the rear (now actually three if the enclosed
gallery is included), and no interior hallways. (See enclosed floor plan,)
Access to the various rooms comes only from the galleries or from the interior
doors between rooms. The floors on the lower story were brick, but these were removed
and the floors covered with concrete. Originally the lower story was used
for the dining room and rooms for supplies, provisions and servants. The
center room upstairs was the living room, and bedrooms were on the sides.
There are two interior chimmneys: one between the central and right front
rooms, and the other in the rear. The structural techniques used (briquette
entre poteaux, hewn cypress timbers, pegged joints) and the stylistic details
(French and Federal) strongly suggest a late 18th or early 19th century date
of construction for this house. ‘

Alterations to the house have included the enclosing of the rear
gallery, the replacement of many of the windows, the concreting of the ground
floor, and the addition of modern paneling and tile to some of the rooms.
None of these changes are irreversible.

Early outbuildings still on the property are one pigeonnier and a
corn crib. The pigeonnier is located about 60' from the right front corner of
the house. Originally there was an identical pigeonnier to the left front
of the house, but it no longer remains. The interior of the pigeonnier has
the same type of beaded beams as in the house. The pigeonnier is constructed
of hewn cypress and has a hipped roof.

The corn crib is located about 30' from the southeast corner of the
house, It was originally on the other side of the house, but had to be moved
because it no longer fit within the present property boundaries. It is
constructed of hewn cypress and has the same pegged construction as seen in the
framing of the house roof. Unlike the house and the pigeonnier, the corncrib
has a gable roof.
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7. Description (cont'd)

The house was originally located on a large land grant, but
now only the immediate surroundings (approximately 141' x 163') remain intact.
The property is located at the end of a cul-de-sac next to the General
Hospital in a fairly heavily built up area of Opelousas.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Michel Prudhomme Home is locally significant because of its
architecture. It is an excellent example of 18th century French-influenced building
tradition as it began to be affected by the classicism of the first half of the
19th century. While this type of house was fairly typical of the late 18th/early
19th centuries in this part of Louisiana, remaining examples are rapidly diminishing
in number. Outbuildings such as those present here - especially the pigeonnier -
are also becoming quite rare. Although the exact construction date of this house
is not known, local tradition says that it is the oldest domestic structure in St.

Landry Parish.

During the 1770's, Michel Prudhomme received several parcels of.
land in this vicinity by Spanish land grant and by purchase. In 1796
Prudhomme, who was a native of the Strasbourg area of France, donated some of the
property to what is now the St. Landry Catholic Church, enabling that church to
be moved from the Washington area to Opelousas in 1798.

Family tradition states that Michel Prudhomme built the house in
the 1770's. - A report in the American State Papers of 1816 claims that in 1812
this property had already been inhabited and cultivated for twenty-two consecutive
years prior to that date. Thus, there are strong suggestions (these along with the
form, plan, structural elements and some stylistic details of the house) which
indicate that it could have been built in the late 18th century. On the other
hand, the physical traits used in this house were quite often in evidence during
the early 19th century, and certain other details, such as the scored stucco facade
and the nature of the window treatment, indicate that the house may not have been
built until around 1820, unless it was built earlier and underwent some changes in
the early 19th century. However, regardless of the actual date of construction -
whether late 18th or early 19th century - this house is representative of a type
which is becoming increasingly rare in Louisiana, and as such should be recognized

and preserved.

The house received one of its common names - Rlngrose - from the
family of the same name who owned and occupied it in later years.
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